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ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 10-27)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for
March 25 th is now in session. Good morning, Members. The time is 9:07. At
this time the Chair would like to recognize the members that are here this
morning. We do have Members Molina. Morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair. The survivors are here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Morning. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning and aloha, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Excused at this time are Members Johnson,
Medeiros and our Chairman Mateo. Members, thank you for enduring that late
evening, last night. I appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's one of many coming.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That was one meeting I think we all will remember because as
far as I can remember, that was the largest crowd we ever had, in my eight years
over here.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How many, how many testified?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We had 82 people signed up to testify last night so it was -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Whoa!
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --it was huge. The Chair would like to recognize the people
upfront. We do have our supporting cast. We do have Legislative Analyst, Gayle
Revels, as well as Scott Kaneshina, and our Committee Secretary, Yvette
Bouthillier. Representing the Administration this morning, we do have the
Budget Director, Fred Pablo as well as our First Deputy Corporation Counsel,
Traci Fujita Villarosa. And also upfront, we do have the Director of Liquor
Control, Mr. Frank Silva and the Deputy Director of Liquor Control, Mr. Wayne
Pagan. Director, if you can, introduce the person next to you, the lady.
MR. SILVA: To my left...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you speak directly into the mic, please?
MR. SILVA: To my left is Georgette, she's our Budget Officer and she'll be answering
all of the questions this morning.
...(Laughter)...

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
...(Laughter)...

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, the Chair is going to conduct this meeting
differently. I know we do have people signed up for public testimony but if
there's anyone that want to testify in regards to the Liquor Control at this time, if
you can come forward. Seeing none, Members, the Chairman is going to take the
Liquor Control before public testimony and if there's no objections, the Chair will
do that.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Shouldn't be long. The...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Famous last words.

3

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 25, 2010

CHAIR PONTANILLA: You can take a look at your proposed bill on Page 6, your
Program Budget on Page 11, your Budget Details on Page 9, and the request from
the Liquor Department is $2,776,337. At this time, I would like to call on
Mr. Silva to provide us with a general overview of your request for
Fiscal Year 2011. Mr. Silva.
MR. SILVA: Good morning, Chair and Members of the Budget Committee. The Liquor
Control Budget, as you all know, is a...we're a semi-autonomous Department.
All of our fees and all of our monies come from the licensees, liquor licensees.
None of our money comes from the General Fund. The only dealings we have
with the General Fund is that we deposit 70 percent of our A Account, which is
our salaries, into the General Fund for overhead charges. The Department's
mission statement remains the same since 1933 and the repeal of Prohibition with
the ratification of the 21 St Amendment. The Department still protects the health,
safety and welfare of the public by regulating liquor licensees in the importation,
manufacture, sales and service of alcoholic beverages. We strive to achieve
compliance, voluntary compliance by the licensees for the rules and regulations
County of Maui and for the Hawaii Revised Statutes. As you can see, our budget
is based on, like everybody else, a decrease in our budget from last year the
decrease is $143,904. Our B Account, what we're requesting this year, is for
equipment, one vehicle and a copier. So you have the budget in front of you, I'll
just...I'll defer to any questions you might have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, we'll take the A Account first. As the
Director had mentioned, when you look at salary adjustments that's the one-day
furlough day. Mr. Silva, just for confirmation, is that the adjustment that you
made, $60,000?
MR. SILVA: The 69? Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. SILVA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, any questions? Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. No, defmitely not a lot of
questions. Just want to compliment the Department for their consistency and
efficiency so...we wish all of our departments could perform like this but, you
know, we have a lot of a...departments have different issues and challenges. But
just one question on the Program Budget on your Performance Measures, in terms
of permits issued, you're projecting the same as in Fiscal Year '10, 210 permits
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issued. And I know with the state of the economy, any comments as to with the
economy going down and in terms of applications and permits, you don't foresee
any changes?
MR. SILVA: No, we don't...As a matter of fact, the total gross sales for last year was
49...total gross sales Maui County last year was $236,000,594.32.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Wow.
MR. SILVA: In, you know, that's 230...$236 million but last year, I'm sorry, the year
before last year was $260 million. So it only went down, less than $30 million.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Wow. So even with the economy, it just went down
20, yeah. I thought maybe with the economy, it kind of, you know, some people
tend to purchase liquor more, yeah. I guess, well, I don't know, this is more of at
the retail establishments, the restaurants and bars, yeah?
MR. SILVA: Yeah. And that is the normal trend.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh.
MR. SILVA: In a depressed area and in a depressed economy, liquor sales normally
remain the same or elevate, a little.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right, thank you very much. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair. And good morning, Liquor
Department.
MR. SILVA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm interested in that statistic. You know, it's funny how
we turn to liquor when we have pain, really. And there's an awful lot of pain
going around, it's a wonder that your numbers are not double. But anyway, I
wanted to ask you a question. Under your goals, your second goal says you
promote liquor control through alcohol education and achieve voluntary
compliance with liquor laws and rules by licenses. Can you tell me what kind of
alcohol education you do and I'm particularly interested with youth.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Director?
MR. SILVA: Oh, I'm sorry. I thought you was [sic] continuing. The education that we
provide is we have what we call a certification exam. Every licensed premises on
the island, or, or in Maui County, has to have a person in charge that has a
certification card from the Department of Liquor Control. They have to come up,
take the exam, pass the exam, which is a pretty hard exam. In other words, looks
like, we have about 60 questions and you can miss five, any more than five, you
fail. So it's a pretty strict test. It's all about the rules and regulations and the laws
of Hawaii Revised Statutes. We go out to the licensed premises, for instance, we
go to Lanai, we go to Molokai, we go to Kaanapali, to the hotels, to the
restaurants and we do onsite training also. And this is training in observing
people who may be over-served, minors, identification, those kind of things.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So your education is directed primarily to those people
that have liquor licenses?
MR. SILVA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And not to the general public or like youth groups or
whatever?
MR. SILVA: No, we're not allowed to expend any funds other than strictly for
Commission expenses or liquor licenses.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. That's really a sad situation because that's
why we have this problem with liquor, is I don't think we're doing enough
education with our youth. But that's neither here nor there. You're following
what you're allowed to do. Thank you.
MR. SILVA: There's a bill in the Legislation right now that will authorize us to use
funds from fines for that purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I really think it's an important thing because, you know,
we do have an alcohol abuse problem, like everybody else does, but I don't know
if ours is any better or worse, I'm not a expert on the subject. I can only tell you
from the work I did and from what I hear in the community, we have a lot of
problems associated with drinking too much. And it's sad that we're not trying to
curb it while people are still young. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I have no questions on this section,
Chair, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Your reductions, I see here, there was...is it
like other departments, I'm looking on Page 9-2 and I'm looking under Liquor
Control Officer III, and that's LC-0014, was that a change in status, did he go
from...did that person go from III to II or something? Because it says from 56 to
44 and it's 20 percent savings there but was that a change in the status or what
was that all about?
MS. TYAU: The position was filled by a person with less years of service.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh. So now it becomes, instead of a III, they
become an Officer II or something like that?
MS. TYAU: No, they're still a III but because of the step movements, like A, B, C, D, E,
depending on years -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.
MS. TYAU: --of service it was brought down from like maybe from, maybe it was,
maybe at a G or something and now it's brought back down to a B.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. In other words, because of years of service,
the pay -MS. TYAU: Is less.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --the pay scale, even though you're the same, is
less.
MS. TYAU: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then through the years, they would step
up to that point?
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MS. TYAU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. TYAU: Every three years.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay. Well, thank you. And you know, I
agree, Mr. Pagan, you know, I mean, not Mr. Pagan. See I get my senior moments
too many times now, because we work late now, I get tired fast. But what you
were saying about the Legislature, I hope something comes down because you're
the only department that really, you know, Mr. Molina said, you guys, you know,
really efficient and all that and that's true. But you guys also set the fees and rates
which we're able to not have to use General Funds. And I... and there's not a lot
of upset people. Because somehow, drinking is not, is, is, is okay. People willing
to pay the price. Just like cigarettes; they willing to pay the price. Yet on the
other side, if we raise their sewer fee, we raise their water fee, they get upset. Just
point in case, Mr., Mr. Chair. I just, you know, I wish we had the ability in this
area since if people want to do it, just like cigarettes, raise it so high, that, those
who stop, maybe will stop 'cause they can't afford it. But more importantly, we
have money, like in the Cigarette and the Tobacco Fund to take care of all the ill
effects, like Ms. Baisa mentioned earlier. And to start treating and educating and
doing the things. But that's not your fault, I not blaming you folks. It's the way
the laws are and hopefully the Legislature will recognize that, Mr. Chair, and give
us that ability in the near future. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah the Chair was going to ask the same question,
like Ms. Baisa, in regards to the possibility of utilizing Liquor Department funds
for alcohol abuse type programs. You know, hopefully that the Legislature does
pass that bill, and the other thing that I wanted to ask the Department is in regards
to DUI enforcement. Do you guys do that? Is there a possibility--if you guys
don't--is there a possibility of partnering with the Police Department to enforce
DUI?
MR. SILVA: That's a good question, Mr. Chair. Maui's Liquor Control has been
working with the Police Department for the past 30 years. Matter of fact, we're
the only County that does DUI follow-ups and fatality follow-ups. We, we get the
police reports every morning and any liquor law violation comes to our desk and
we follow up on well...our investigators at night, check with the Police
Department once every hour. If there's an arrest, our investigators are there,
interviewing the person that was arrest to find out. .. anested to find out where he
was drinking and to do immediate follow-up from there to see whether or not, a
licensed premises may be responsible for over-service. Those that we miss
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throughout the night, we get the police report, it may be a week later, but we do
follow up with the person that was arrested. And we do cite the premises that
over-served or served minors.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for that piece of information, glad to
hear that, you know, you guys work with the Police Department in interviewing,
you know, people that are caught with DUI, being stopped for DUI so, glad to
hear that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, only one real quick question and if I may.
Do you guys have any sting operations like the Tobacco Division? They go out
and, you know, you see in the newspaper they cite five stores, 12 stores for selling
minors cigarettes. Do you guys do stings of that nature too?
MR. SILVA: Oh yeah. Of course.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then you would cite the...but you don't make
that public, right? You don't publish that, yeah?
MR. SILVA: No. But we do, matter of fact, we're doing one today. We have...we're
accompanied by the Police -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. SILVA: --when we go out and we do stings for minors.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. SILVA: We do also parking lot, we do shoulder taps. See whether or not adults are
buying for minors. And, and yeah, we do cite them. And Maui has the four
strikes and you're out rule. They call it the death penalty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. SILVA: First time you're cited, it's an automatic $1,000 fine. Second time is
$2,000 fine. Third time, it's a suspension, 15 days, 30 day. And the fourth time is
a mandatory revocation of the liquor license. In five years...if they do it four
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times in five years, the license is revoked. And that's either serving minors or
over-serving patrons.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that just Maui County or is that a State...
MR. SILVA: Just Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just Maui County.
MR. SILVA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. I know you guys work diligently and
that's, that's good news. I like the idea of sting because that keeps everybody, at
least hopefully, try to keep people honest. But yet the problem still exists, yeah?
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions on the A Account?
Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh no, I'm sorry, B Account. I'll wait.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We go to the B Account. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Chairman. Mr. Silva, you know, I
was noticing under your B Account, as far as expenses for gasoline, diesel, oil,
Page 9-4 for the Members info. Fiscal Year '09, you had $23,000, then last,
Fiscal Year '10, you projected 29 and this year the same. And I was going to ask
how come, you know, you're not projecting an increase, but then I looked under
your goals in the Program Budget, increase energy efficiency by doubling up
investigators in vehicles during inspection checks. So I just actually wanted to
compliment you. That's a real simple, you know, idea and innovative and look,
save money, just on that. So I think it's a real good, simple way to save money.
So, anyway, I just wanted to say that.
MR. SILVA: And not only does it save money, it provides for safety for the enforcement
officers.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Kind of like a buddy system, yeah?
MR. SILVA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Okay. And do your investigators, every now
and then, encounter some, you know, I'm sure...has that been on the rise, any
hassles from either patrons or those who operate the drinking establishments?
MR. SILVA: It's a, it's a nonnal...it happens pretty much on a normal basis.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh yeah.
MR. SILVA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Typically what type of hostilities do they face? It's
more verbal?
MR. SILVA: Well, it's gotten to the point where they damage our vehicles, those kind of
things. You know, that's the reason we don't put seals on our vehicles anymore
because it kind of puts us out there as targets. So . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. SILVA: You know respect for authority has gone down quite a bit. And especially
in certain areas and in certain hot areas, it's a good thing we at least have experts
in our Department that, experts on verbal judo. They can pretty much talk their
way out of, of a confrontation. That's probably, that's one of the reasons why we,
last year we went for tasers, we were requesting, you know, a defensive tool for
the investigators. And that was, that was shot down so.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, anyway, good, good thought then. Good
ideas. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Just a question on
your rental item. Is, is that for your office spaces then?
MR. SILVA: Yes, in Wailuku and Lahaina.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And Lahaina, these two.
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MR. SILVA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And you don't anticipate any change in
that then in the next fiscal year?
MR. SILVA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. That's it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. So we go to the C Account, which is the
replacement of the vehicle as well as leasing of a copier. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. That's it for Liquor Department. You know, like I said,
they're so efficient. Members, at this time the Chair's going to release the Liquor
Department. I want to thank Director Silva as well as Deputy Director Pagan and
your staff person for being here this morning. Thank you.
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MR. SILVA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Members, it's a, was a pretty painless
ordeal. I was . . .(inaudible). . .
...(Laughter)...

CHAIR PONTANILLA: What we want though, we want to use some of that money that
you collect.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're going to get our hands on some of that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revenue enhancement, right there.
...(Pause)...

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, at this time the Chair will start our public
testimony. For those of you that are providing testimony this morning, you have
three minutes to provide your testimony, one minute to conclude. And if you can
state your name and the organization that you represent, the Chair would
appreciate that. And, Members, and everyone in the Chambers, if you can place
your cell phones on silent mode or if you can turn it off. Members, all of the
testifiers that signed up this morning, will be talking about the Wailuku Main
Street Association. The first person to testify is Teri Edmonds.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MS. EDMONDS: Good morning, Council. Good morning, Chair. Thank you for having
me here today. I am actually testifying on the Maui Redevelopment Agency
today.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sorry.
MS. EDMONDS: That's okay. And I am...just a little bit of history, I'm Teri Edmonds.
I am the owner of If the Shoe Fits and Testers Shoe Repair, Shoe Repair, past
President of the Iao Theater, current President of the Wailuku Community
Association. But I am here today speaking as an owner of my business in
Wailuku. And it's funny, I think I came here a few years ago and I said, you
know, we are the County seat for three islands and we are still not in the maps.
This is a driving map, and we are still not in the maps, I cannot believe it. 101
Things to Do, they write about us being written up as the number one island in the
world again, not a single mention about Wailuku. And we have what, the number
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one tourist destination on the island, Iao Valley. So what I, why I'm here for the
MRA is because I feel that we are in a very precarious situation in Wailuku right
now. We are headed in a great direction but we are not over the...over that hill
yet. And it made me think back on the days when Café Marc Aurel wasn't open
during the day. They shut their doors and boy, you know what, it was a ghost
town. And I mean, I'm lucky I've got a business and a good niche there but we're
still not there. If something like that happened to us, we still have a lot
redevelopment. And what I like about the MRA, primarily number one, is they
are, they provide access to the County for grassroots people like me. We have
organizations that are in town that work on other things, technicalities and things
like that and great projects, but we need somebody that can listen to the grassroots
development. And if it's not MRA, I'm going to be in Mike Victorino's office all
the time because there's a lot to do. The housing project down there still needs
some work. We've had these great street renovations coming, the MRA helped us
be a, a tool for getting rubbish cans. I took pictures before we had the rubbish
cans and there were piles of trash in our little tree plots, pots out there. It's come
a long way. The streets are paved. But we need urban development. We're
talking about the Focus Maui Nui Plan, where it's small towns built up. If it is not
guided properly, it...who knows what direction it will take. I like having a goal.
I like having a vision and I think the MRA, from what I've heard from them, I
think that they're under good leadership right now. I see them, when I go to those
meetings, she's got Alexis, the new Chair's got her checklist there and she says to
the County, okay, how are we doing on that project list? Let's go down one by
one, even if we heard them all last month. I like that. I see movement. I see
focus, I, I see more now than ever that they are ready to keep us guided and build
this little town to be the beautiful diamond that it really should be, and I hope that
I'm back here again next year and maybe we'll be in the map. Or maybe two
years, maybe three years, I don't care but I want a nice big star where Wailuku is
supposed to be.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. EDMONDS: So thank you again for listening and again I show my support for the
Maui Redevelopment Agency.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho`ohalahala.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you. Just some
clarification. Are you part of the MRA?
MS. EDMONDS: No. I am the President of the Wailuku Community Association so I
attend the MRA meetings as a guest.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: As a guest. And, and do you have an
opportunity to give input in that process?
MS. EDMONDS: I love it. Yes, I do. And I feel like we get...I feel--yes--I feel like they
do advocate for all who are there. And I feel that's it equal, whether it's for my
side that day or not, I feel like it's equal representation.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So where do you see the
movement then from what you've been participating in, what you have been
giving input for and where are they?
MS. EDMONDS: Specifically it started with the cleanup of Wailuku town with the
rubbish cans. When Arakawa was in office, we kept telling him the problems we
were having and, you know, we did a lot of street cleanups at that time. We are
business owners, we know everybody works hard and everybody volunteers but at
some point that project needed to be taken over. And they were willing to step up
and be the venue for that and allow that to happen. That's the first thing. Most
importantly, and I need to stress this, is they allow us to have a voice in a system
that I think we would not have a voice in otherwise. I don't feel like...in some
areas doors are not open to us to speak up and it is--I'm not saying here, Council's
been very open to listening to us--but they have been the one tried and true venue
for us to at least get our input on record.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And what is the next step then?
MS. EDMONDS: I think the next step is going to be for an instance, with this
market-based plan, the Wailuku Market-Based Plan, and that's a number of
groups that put that together, but it is a group of active community members who
are working to help build a vision for the urban development of Wailuku. In a
way that we represent how, how people say to us, oh, I remember Wailuku when
and they tell the whole story about how it used to be. And I think that's where the
vision wants to go but from that committee, we spinned [sic] off another
community called an Entertainment District Committee. And that's just strictly
volunteers but that came from this Market-Based Plan, which was also spurred by
the MRA. So I find from them, they give us, well, okay this is something else to
answer that is, if we're going to try and bring in other credible businesses, like
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maybe a great grocery store or some other good restaurants, we need to have a, a
backbone. It's like a, the word I'm looking for would be like a, like a condo
management agency, something that's, you got a good board, you can get action
from, you can hear your concerns, they listen to your concerns. That's what I
want, and I think it's really important that we keep that there at least until Wailuku
is more self-sustaining.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Do you consider the MRA to be that?
MS. EDMONDS: I do. I've been there since, my gosh, I think I've been attending them
for maybe the last five years. And I think more and more than ever, I really like
the new leadership. And like I said, it's that checklist. I'm a big checklist person.
I like to make sure our money is getting spent and that's what they do. They go
through that checklist and where are we, you know? And we can speak on that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. EDMONDS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you and, Teri, thank you for being
here. And you are at my door all the time so that's not unusual. What else is new
this week?
...(Laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And just so that we're all clear, the MRA is not a
non-profit group. It is actually an agency of this County, which was put in many
years ago as part of our redevelopment of Wailuku town and the urban blight that
existed at that time, which still in many cases, still exists. So you feel we're
making tremendous movements, or at least we're making movements to correct
these problems?
MS. EDMONDS: Yes, I do.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
MS. EDMONDS: And I would like to have some regular oversight on that growth.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Teri.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. I'm sorry, I didn't...it's early this morning, we had a
late night. Thank you very much, Teri, for being here this morning, and I do
know a lot about your community service. I, I'm amazed by the energy you have
as well as to run a business. But I wanted to ask you, do you think that MRA
could get more done and definitely be more effective if they had a part-time
manager or a manager full time or somebody to kind of lead it?
MS. EDMONDS: You know, as a volunteer and I believe those are volunteered
committee positions, I think everybody can use help. You know, somebody to
actually run a project. I think when you have volunteers doing all the work, it's
great we have this great committee right now that is very gung-ho but I always
advocate for having a little bit of help to get things moving.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So one point person, a staff person who could kind of
coordinate the volunteers and -MS. EDMONDS: Definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --prepare agendas and you know, do research and
represent the group.
MS. EDMONDS: Especially since they're governed by the Sunshine Law so tightly,
they really have to be careful of when they meet and yeah, I do think that. I think,
I've seen with Erin and Joe both being there kind of as an assistant, I don't know
that whole workings of that system but it works well. I like it. More and more,
the last year, I've enjoyed that experience.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. EDMONDS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA Thank you. Just a fast question for you. You know you talk
about economic development within the Wailuku town area. Does the group
interact with our Economic Development Department?
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MS. EDMONDS: With the Maui Economic, say that again, which committee?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maui...it's not a committee. It's a department, Economic
Development for Maui County.
MS. EDMONDS: Oh, yeah. Absolutely. They've been, actually, since I've been in
business, that Department's always been supportive of Wailuku and the, Think
Local campaign, I mean, they've done so many things, that the list just goes on.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. EDMONDS: If I didn't have to pull it out of my head, I would think of more.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Andy maybe you should talk...
MS. EDMONDS: I think they do a fabulous job.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe you should talk to the people that does the map to make
sure that they put it, put Wailuku on the map.
MS. EDMONDS: Yes, that would be true, right. I thought so, I agree with you and I've
tried. But I think we need, it must, we must not look significant enough to
outsiders. So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Teri -MS. EDMONDS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --and thank you for being here. You've been in
business for how long now and how are things right now with your, you know as
a small business owner, and how does the MRA in your view, their role in helping
support, you know, businesses like yourselves?
MS. EDMONDS: Sure. Well, the best example I could give, is I've been in business for
ten years now in Wailuku, right on Market Street, and the, the most significant
thing that you can see is the rubbish pickup. I mean that was something literally
us volunteers were doing and it's, it was a handful of volunteers and still is. But
doing clean up days and then trying to, I would personally go to all of the
different food facilities of their products that I'm seeing in our planters and
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saying, you know, we need help, please pitch in and then it became so much
work. We did talk to Arakawa at the time and said, you know, and he said okay,
look, if you guys will help pitch in, we'll start you off. But from there, we even
had to pay for our own rubbish pick up for the first year. And all the merchants
did come in and step up to the plate and did a great job, but then, the MRA was
able to take that over for us and it would be really tough to have to take that piece
on again. And I love the flowers and, you know, people come in to me and say
oh, parking is so difficult here. But then I ask them, well, did you find a parking
space? Yes. Okay and, you know, literally that is the answer so often, I
think...that's why I like the flowers, I like the plants, I like the rubbish pick up, I
like the fact that we're going to have banners coming. And like I said, we're close
but we're just not quite there yet and I would like to just have it organized and
conducted by an agency that I think is fair and represents everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right. So basically, beautify it and they will come,
right ... (inaudible)...
MS. EDMONDS: It does help. ... (Laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Great, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, anymore questions for the
testifier this morning? If not, thank you very much, Ms. Edmonds.
MS. EDMONDS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, the next testifier is Tom Cannon.
MR. CANNON: Good morning -CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. CANNON: --I'm Tom Cannon, Chairman of the Board of the Wailuku Main Street
Association/Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center or Tri-Isle Main Street. Our
Board is extremely concerned about our long awaited Fiscal Year 2010 County
appropriated contract and the fact that our 2011 funding requests have been
slashed by 35 percent of full funding. We are also concerned about the ongoing
treatment we are receiving by the County Planning Director and his Deputy. As
you know, for almost 25 years the Tri-Isle Main Street has assisted the County in
connecting with the grassroots in a meaningful way, especially with regard to
perpetuating the authentic character of Maui's small towns, and enunciating the
concerns and desires of long time residents. Now, members of the Administration
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have delayed our yearly contract until the last minute and then sent us a new
egregious agreement proposal that seeks to control and censor the voice of the
community grassroots organization. Ever since Tri-Isle Main Street began
commenting on the specifics of the Maui County General Plan, we have felt
increasing pressure from the Department administrators to refrain from expressing
the local community's concerns and to not suggest improvements to the Plan. As
you know, our volunteer professionals provide an important check and balance to
ensure Planning responds to local concerns. The Planning administration's
proposed agreement creates a confrontational relationship between our two
organizations. Over the years we have had a good working relationship with the
members of the Planning Department and would like to continue this in the future.
It is unfortunate that the present Planning administration is unwilling, is willing to
jeopardize 24 years of mutual respect, trust and cooperation that has reaped many
benefits for the both the County's small towns and the County of Maui
government. The laws providing for Maui's general planning process delineate a
bottom up approach, where the desires of Maui's represent, of Maui's residents,
determine the Plan. In contrast to this, the Planning administration has a top
down approach, where the Department considers community concerns then
determines whether to include them or not and ultimately what's best for the
community In order for the Tri-Isle Main Street to fully, to be fully effective, as
a voice for small towns, we need to remain fully autonomous and not be dictated
to by Planning officials who obviously have conflicting interests with our small
town communities. The Tri-Isle Main Street Board of Directors takes serious
issue with several contractual points of the proposed grant agreement. And,
which seem aimed at changing the long-standing working relationship between
Tri-Isle Main Street and the County from being a fee for service agreement to
being one based upon reimbursement, which is contrary to the historical intent of
the grant. A fee for service contract has been supported by the County for many
years -MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. CANNON: --and as you may recall, the reporting method we have been using for
years, was originally approved by the Mayor when she was a Council Planning
Chairperson. A new Section H of the Planning Director's proposal agrees,
requires that one, information, data, report, records, summaries, tables, maps and
studies given to or prepared or assembled by us, under the new agreement, will be
kept confidential, which will be made available, will not be made available to any
individual or organization other than the subcontractor to which materials may
relate. And without prior, without prior written approval by the County, and the
County shall have complete ownership of all material both finished and
unfinished which is developed, prepared, assembled or conceived by the, by us.
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While this might seem appropriate for a consultant to the Planning Department,
our grant has always -MR. KANESHINA: Four minutes.
MR. CANNON: --been intended to promote an independent voice for small towns. We
find this requirement extremely inappropriate and offensive. The Planning
administrator's new agreement proposal would require us to withhold information
from the public. Tri-Isle Main Street will not breech the trust of our volunteer
contributor's time and talent by colluding with this activity. The drawing shown
to you yesterday of the proposed new parking structure for Wailuku was created
by a Tri-Isle Main Street volunteer architect. The drawing would not have been
created if it meant that the County would then have ownership of the drawing and
the right to copyright this drawing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Cannon, can you conclude please.
MR. CANNON: Yes, I can. Furthermore, Section H would also require that we fully
disclose confidential information given to us by concerned Maui residents who
are not comfortable dealing directly with the County. We have an ethical
obligation to protect our confidential sources and cannot ignore their trust in us.
Getting these important grass-root concerns is one reason the County has
partnered with Tri-Isle Main Street all these years. These people will not deal
with the County directly for fear of retaliation, and the addition of this new
requirement and others shows clearly that this fear is well justified.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. CANNON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, when you formulate your questions for Mr. Cannon,
if you can relate it to the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget. The Chair is intending to
create a PAF to hear the complaints in regards to, or the concerns in regards to
Wailuku Main Street Association, and then that will be taken up probably after
the budget. So at this time, Members, if you can relate your questions to the
existing Fiscal Year 2011 Budget as agendized. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Cannon.
And a, you know, with the, the Department's current recommendation of 182,000,
how do you see that, you know, impacting the performance of Tri-Isle Main
Street in their duties? My impression is, I guess the Department wants them to
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perform the same duties but with a significantly reduced amount from 243,000
and now to 182. What areas do you see a major impact?
MR. CANNON: All areas. And, and I want to clarify that the reduction is really
35 percent. It, it, we were, our full funding is 270,000. So the cut is 35 percent,
not less than that. It would have a dramatic, a major impact upon our
organization, possibly even putting us, just ending our, our existence.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So in short, you're seeing this as a way to basically kill
Tri-Isle Main Street Association with this significant reduction in funding?
MR. CANNON: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Alright. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
MEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair, I don't want to disagree with you but, you
know, we're looking at this year's budget but we're finding out as we look at the
document, that in last year's budget we're looking at, whether it's been released or
not. And I think that, I'm going to have a hard time in approving anything that
I'm not, I don't feel comfortable with. And right now, I am very uncomfortable if
we don't deal with some of these circumstances, like the new agreement that we
don't have in front of us. Mr. Chairman, we're using government funds. These
are taxpayers' money. I think that I as a Councilperson in making a decision need
to have these kinds of information available. None of that to me is private. We
were given this agreement and if you tell me that it's not completed, you're right.
They, they refused to sign this agreement here, okay. So to tell, if you, if we're
going to say that oh, it's an agreement that they've not looked at so therefore, you
know, we can't have that discussion, I don't believe that to be true. This is one
that we're having a discussion on and to me, this is the reason why, we heard
yesterday, that the funding was not given to them. And I have problems. I have
problems in the fact that how can an organization operate, I don't know how they
did it, like I said, with no money at all and this is nine months into this fiscal year.
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And they've not received a penny. And we've heard Administration say there's a
reason why and we've heard Corporation Counsel say that the document that is
being drafted is probably very similar and to protect the County. Mr. Cannon
comes up today and says that he's not agreeable to, I don't know if you say,
Section H or 8, okay, because I don't have the document in front of me, Tom.
You've had it and I don't have it. So I can't follow, because I have the old
document. You're referring to the new document, aren't you? ... (inaudible) ...
given to you?
MR. CANNON: No, I'm referring to the original document we were given.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, the original document.
MR. CANNON: Yeah, this new one...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What, what happened to the new document that they
said that was prepared and apparently Administration agreed to it, and now
they're, from what I heard, transporting it to you people for...
MR. CANNON: In my brief overview of that document, which we only received
yesterday night...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, you do have it then?
MR. CANNON: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. CANNON: In my brief overview of that, there are no substantive changes. There's
an addition of a requirement that there always be a Planning person at all of our
meetings, and that's all of our meetings except our Board meetings. We have
meetings with individuals daily and that would mean calling the Planning
Department to find out if they could come down when we're talking to Joe about
what his concerns are. But Joe won't talk to us if there's a Planning official there.
Because...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, Tom. Yeah, and, and fine. But, Mr. Chairman,
I'm only listening to him. And I don't know if what he says is true or not. I think
we need that document.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, Mr. Nishiki...
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And for us to have further discussion on this is...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, we're here to talk about the Mayor's proposal
which is a Fiscal Year 2011 Budget. We had lot of discussion yesterday in regards
to Fiscal Year 2010 appropriations, and I don't think it's in this venue that we try
to resolve or talk about monies that were appropriated in Fiscal Year 2010. As I
said, the Chair is intending to listen to this in regards to whatever was
appropriated in Fiscal Year 2010 for Wailuku Main Street Association. We need
both parties. We, we need Corporation Counsel to advise us in regards to
contracts, grant contract agreements because we had discussions away from the
2011 Fiscal Year Budget yesterday. And the Chair allowed it and I was told that,
or reminded that we're here in regards to the Mayor's proposal. So I, I don't want
this thing to die, okay. We're gonna hear this. I have concerns too in regards to
what we budget, contracts not being signed, and what appropriations that Wailuku
Main Street Association will, will be provided from this County. Yeah, we talking
about the people's money. I am concerned with that too. So...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I don't, I don't disagree with anything that you say,
okay. That's not my point. My point is, if monies and we're asking all of these
questions, we ask, we ask property tax people about these monies and what we're
trying to collect and everything else. That definitely has to do with approving this
year's budget. I'm not going to gloss over what is, has been brought before us,
Mr. Chair. And I'm sorry. I'm not going to sit down here and be a clone and say
that everything is okay. It is not okay for me as a decision maker. We're dealing
with public money, public money has been withheld, a document has not been
approved, and to me, it's like, I don't know if they, they want us to get involved
but I feel we need to get involved in this whole situation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I agree with you, Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: For nine months and, and this is going back and forth
and -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --we need to look at this document ... (inaudible) ...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, Mr. Nishiki, I agree with you but this is not the
venue to, to, to get this discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You're the Chairman, I'm not going to disagree with,
I'm not going to disrespect you, but and, and, and I don't know what other
Committee Members feel. But I want to tell you right now, Mr. Chairman, with
no disrespect, you know, we brought it to this point, and we've not resolved
anything. And I want to see this resolved because this, this organization and I
don't know if you think it's okay that they're using whatever money they have to
operate, and yet this Administration is holding this money back for whatever
reason. And I think that it's not going to get resolved very easily. I heard Tom
already say, testify this morning that they disagree with these things, okay. And
Administration is going to say and Corporation said yesterday, that he's protecting
the, the, the County and therefore, whatever was written is what it is. They're not
going to agree. So, what, it's a stalemate again, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, this is not the venue to...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and to me...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: To me that we are the check and balance for
Administration ...(inaudible)....
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I agree with you, we are the check and balance. But here we
are talking about the physical [sic] Year 2011 Budget. Whatever happened in
Fiscal Year 2010 Budget, that, that's a different venue that we will be discussing.
Corporation Counsel has the obligation to protect the County's money, public
money. So this is not the venue to discuss what was appropriated in 2010. We do
have on the agenda, the Fiscal Year 2011. And, and I, I don't want to discuss the
2010 Fiscal Year appropriation for Wailuku Main Street. I'm willing to hear
testimony in regards to that, but to ask questions on the 2010 Budget, this is not
the right venue.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, and, and, and, and, as I said, you know,
I, I beg to disagree with you and hopefully, you'll respect it. But we always ask,
we always ask past expenses. We go into even when we talk about, you know, C
Account or B Account, you know, what has been spent so far. You know, what
are the vacancies, you know, we always have to go back to, you know, the past
budget cycle that we were in. I just, I just cannot accept that and, and you know,
I'm, I'm at stalemate with you right now. And unless, you know, other people
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decide then I don't like to leave something like this unresolved, and I just feel like
people are depending upon us. I think that people will look and say the Council
just let it go and yet there's some, there's, there's pilikia.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki, we not going to let go this thing here. We not
going to let go. We ask the questions to all of the department in regards to their
spending.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: ...(inaudible)...that you going to take it into your
Committee and ... (inaudible)...-CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --... (inaudible)... budget ... (inaudible)... but anyway,
I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, I'll respect your, your decision and I guess
the question begs to be asked and as I asked yesterday, why the tremendous cut in
this one and what was the rationale and we never got an answer. And I will ask
that question again and I'll be bringing it forth in writing so that, you know, for
this year's budget, why the tremendous cut, what was the rationale. Because
again, we've gotten reasons, whether we agreed or not, we got reasons from
others. I think that is fairly so I'd like that question to be asked and, in writing, to
the Planning Department, why this particular, or in fact, all of them, why if you
want to go that way, then fine, I'll go that. Why was every one cut, so, cut in the
manner and what was the rationale to that for their cuts. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. As the Chairman had indicated yesterday, we had
cut programs between 0 percent, 1 percent to 100 percent, across the board, in
different programs. But we'll get that information for you from the Budget
Director. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair. Chair, I will respect your position
as a Chair; however, I do want to express my feelings. I think it is very difficult
in this Chamber, when we are discussing budget, not to look at the prior year.
And the reason is, the budget document itself addresses funding for '08, '09, '10,
'11 and so it lends itself, the discussion lends itself to what happened previous to
this year. So I think this is where this went the way it went. And the other issue
that is overarching, it appears to me that we're going towards the same kind of
standoff that is going on, on Oahu, where the Legislature is trying to take away
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the Governor's right to withhold funds. And we're saying, we'll when, when we
approve it, we want it released. And under the current law, the Mayor has the
right not to release or the Administration has the right not to release. So these are
big overarching issues that we're dealing with and unfortunately, the funding for
the Wailuku Main Street Association appears to be the, you know, the lynch pin
of the discussion. But I think we've gone pretty far already in discussing the
issue. But I will support your plan to, you know, continue the discussion
elsewhere. But I do not feel that it is inappropriate to discuss the cunent...last
year's funding because it's before us in the budget document. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Again, we can talk about the past year's budget
and we've [sic] have as it relates to Fiscal Year 2011. But what we can't resolve
is a grant dispute.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's right, that's what this is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. So, Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I'm thinking along the same
lines with Mr. Nishiki but at the same time, I know how it is to be a Committee
Chair and you're trying to maintain focus on the 2011. But they are interrelated
when you have to do comparisons, you know, in terms of what was received in a
prior fiscal year and this year. But can you, how soon can we get an extended
discussion on this grant? I mean, would, would it be, maybe a, I mean, I'm
thinking out loud here, maybe working with Mr. Victorino since this is
headquartered in his district, maybe a separate communication item that can go
through Council and then we can have the meeting possibly in May after decision
making. I mean, just a, because I think this warrants some kind of inquiry, a
deeper inquiry because the Administration did not give us a clear answer as to
why it was from $182,000. It was on the time table that the Deputy Director had
agreed to a $218,000 appropriation then when we questioned the department why
it went down to 182, the answer was more like, well, the word came from
upstairs. And you mentioned yesterday, Mr. Chairman, that we're going to have
this, you know, we'd continue the testimony in relation to this, and I would have
hoped that the Department would have provided us a clear answer as to why it
went down to 182. Because I tell you what, the perception out there is there
maybe some strong-arming going on, retribution, you know. And like
Mr. Nishiki said people are looking, well, what is the Council going to do, are we
just going to let this thing go? Because there is, you know, in my opinion, there's
a lot of questions. And I'm not totally satisfied with the responses the
Department has given. So can you give us any inclination as to how soon we can
get an extended discussion on this?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know, May is a very slow month for budget. Maybe
sometime in May. But, Members, we cannot release any monies until a contract
is resolved, a contract is signed. So as Chairman of Budget and Finance
Committee, I'll make it my responsibility to schedule a meeting strictly to resolve
this particular contract. But again, you know, Chair is not going to stop you from
bringing up past fiscal year budget, but I'm not going to resolve the dispute on the
contract, on the grant when we review the Fiscal Year 2011.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, Mr. Chair, I don't think we'll really be able to
resolve, I mean at least ourselves, but I think our role as the legislative branch is
to make these inquiries and then it will help us determine whether we agree with
the Mayor's or the Department's recommendation or not, and I think that's where
our role can come in. But I think what Mr. Nishiki was saying, if I'm correct, is
just we need more information that'll help us make a fully informed decision. If it
is this body's will to provide an adjusted figure for this organization. So, yeah,
and I agree with you...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (inaudible) ... the Fiscal Year 2011, we have the
responsibility to put numbers where they belong. So as Members if we feel that
the organization is worthy of more than whatever is appropriated then we make
the adjustments. We have that authority. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. You know, I'm searching for some way to
provide some relief because, you know, we're in the ninth month, April will be
ten and May will be, you know, I mean June will be 12 months that these people
have no money if we don't get it resolved. And even if we resolve it today, or,
you know, in May, we know it's going to take time for paperwork to be
processed, it's just the system. You know, is it possible that a very short-term
contract could be worked upon, not a 12-month contract, but something, even a
contract extension or something to provide them some operating cash but not a
full contract or a full grant, obviously because they still haven't agreed upon the
terms, but someway so that, you know, they can get financial relief. If, because if
we don't relieve them, it's possible that by July, they will be a defunct
organization with a huge debt on their back. And is, you know, that's a result we
need to consider. I don't know what the intent is, but if it is our intent to try to
save them and work this out, then we've got to find a way to facilitate that, and,
you know, some kind of a short term contract might do it. Like a consultant
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contract or something just to keep them alive, if that's what we want to do. Now
if we want to let it, you know, die and that's it, well, that's the other alternative.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa, you know, the Chair intent is not to let this
organization die, you know that, and you all know that. And what is being
disputed, you know, is in regards to the contract. And we haven't gotten a
contract and maybe I'll ask Corporation Counsel to provide us with some
information regarding what Member Baisa had mentioned, a short term contract
of some kind so that we can provide some payments to this organization.
Corporation Counsel.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not on.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Is it on?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. There, now.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, normally it is possible to, you know, perhaps do
an extension. The problem is that in this case, for some reason the form of the
grant agreement had somehow...I'm sorry, it's still not working?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's not loud enough.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe you can come over here.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: The form of the grant agreement had somehow gotten
changed, we don't know exactly when that might have happened. But my
understanding is that the current, or the proposed grant agreement that was
submitted to the grantee, made some corrections. So if we were to extend the
contract, it would be extending it with terms that are, terms that are not, basically
the terms that our office uses. So you know it, our office provides legal advice
and yes, you know, we try to protect the County, but many terms, particularly in
grant agreements are not legally required. I mean these are what we think are best
for the County. But often times, when I negotiate agreements, when the other
outside party doesn't agree to them, I ask the department. You know, how,
because it basically becomes a business decision, it's not a legal decision
anymore. It's a business decision, you know how, much risk are you willing to
take, and I let the department know this is what this, this language means, it's not
legally required, what do you guys want to do. You know, because it's their
decision to make so the agreement, you know, is like I said what our Department,
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you know, is our ideal, you know, our ideal situation, but terms can be, you know,
revised or ,you know, changed, depending on the needs of the department. So it's
possible, you know, we can talk to Mike Hopper, who advises the Department of
Planning to perhaps do an extension, a short term extension. Of course, knowing
that, that means that you're extending right, these old terms that are not, you
know, what, what were ideal but maybe just temporarily, you know, that, that
could possibly...and this is assuming though that the scope has been worked out.
So I think took awhile to get ironed out, which actually is another good point
because I don't know what the scope is of that original grant. I'm not sure how
this grant works, if each year there's another scope, like another project that's
described so it wouldn't quite work, I guess to just extend it under an old scope.
So we would have to, you know, we would have to take a look at that as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa, questions.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think that that is a very reasonable solution, and if they
can work it out, at least they will have some income flowing on, in to help with
their operational expenses. But again this would only be a temporary measure
and it would be clear, I guess, in the terms that it would be temporary and that a
satisfactory contract has to be executed long term. But I'm trying to figure out
how we can provide some temporary relief while this is looked at and while the
Council has the meeting that you're discussing, Chair. But I think it's important
we resolve this because, again, it's a precedent setting kind of situation. I have
not from, I've, in my long term memory, I can't remember much of this ever
coming before Council. This is an unusual situation with the grant dispute that's
here on the floor of the Council, but we have to deal with it. And I agree with
Member Nishiki, it's our responsibility and so if we need time to look at it, then if
we could find a way to, you know, help everybody get through this period while
we do this investigation or whatever we want to call it, then I'm happy. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I know that grant agreement is an Administration
decision. And we don't have the authority to release funds. Is that true,
Corporation Counsel?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right, the Council doesn't have the authority to encumber
and expend funds, and as you know, we need a signed agreement in order to
encumber funds.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Corporation Counsel?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah and thank you for those explanations. But I
guess the, the question still begs to be asked, all these changes that have occurred
for this year, and again, I'm going to ask the wrong person, because really it was
Michael Hopper. So my questions cannot be answered with who's in front of us,
Mr. Chair. I'm sorry. And again, it's really based on this year but looking back
at last year. Okay. And that's what the dilemma is. We have a problem right
now from last year. We're talking this year. And I'm trying to stay on the same
subject but yet, not get off track. But if I'm going to ask a question of why
changes are made for this year for the present year, which affects next year, she's
not the one I need to ask. I need to ask Michael. And so, I guess what I'm going
to have to do really more than anything else is write the letter and ask the specific
questions so we have specific answers. And all of this has to be incorporated.
Now, I agree, you know, it's really late in the game and if we can do some kind of
extension like Ms. Baisa mentioned, I'd be happy to do that so that we can get
monies to them that they, they need and they deserve, you know, for the work
they've done. But, Ms. Villarosa, how can and again, you're not the one see, I
want to ask Mr. Hopper, why the changes and he gave us some explanation, but
not really in our minds, a clear cut explanation and why some of this negotiation
hasn't been done over the last nine months. And that's the other reason that, the
other question I have for them. So it really puts us in a bad ...(inaudible) ...
because I'm trying to be this year, talking about last, the present year, looking
forward to next year and agreements that exist, don't exist, have not been
executed. I'm, you know, kind of like in a quandary. So Mr. Chair, I have a lot
of questions but I cannot get them answered because, it's not being, it's not the
right person. But I will say this, this is, this, this problem and I think Mr. Nishiki
put it right on, on, on the, hit the nail right on the head, is I think personal. I think
it's gotten personal. I think, I believe it's gotten personal. And I'm just leaving it
at that. I don't have fact, I think. And I'm not making conclusion, Mr. Hunt and
all the rest of you down there, who you know, hearing this right now, I'm not
making conclusions. I think it's personal and that's why this has all come about.
And we need to take the personality out, get the facts in there, get the
... (inaudible) ... executed and in the future, Mr. Cannon, and all the rest of you in
this organization, we have accountability. I want them to be fair but I need you to
be fair back. It's got to be a two way street. I'll fight, because it's right to fight,
but I got to make sure that I can account for money that the taxpayers put out.
Whether it's Main Street, whether MRA, I don't care who it is, we are
accountable, right, Mr. Chair. We have to answer the questions if we budget
something and it's not done or it's not done correctly. So, I think the question
begs a real response in a sense of I need to know why these were changed for this
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year so we can work on next year and figure out what the problem is. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. And, and, and what you said about the
County Council appropriating money or the inability for us to disburse it, I think
we understand that. And I think you've made the point many times about
micromanaging to us. However, this is not a micromanaging type of situation.
This is, this Department appropriating money through this Administration, then in
this budget cycle, us finding out that this money has not been disbursed to this
organization. Okay, whatever the reason, okay. Personally, I'm not going to go
in this year's budget and again re-appropriate money if I know that this
Administration is not going to release that money. It's wasting taxpayers' money,
it's being unspent. Despite that you say it's line item, it still is money that has not
been spent. Now, what Gladys said as far as how we go about trying to solve this,
I think it's our challenge, Mr. Chair. And, and she's saying and Corporation
Counsel we're asking them can we do something in the mean time. But I think
that it is our responsibility. And, Tom, you guys also, to get to the table with the
Department and Corporation Counsel and try to resolve this situation. I don't like
to hear, Mr. Chairman, that it's been, five months has past and, and, and they've
been trying to resolve this situation. That's what we heard. So there is
information given to us. So I would hope that within this Committee,
Mr. Chairman, and you as the Chairman, you, I would anoint you to get together
with whomever it is and try to solve this. If you don't want to take it then, I'm
sure that there's takers also here. And, and we've got hands, if you want us to
raise our hands. But, if you would, I'm requesting that you do that and try to get
this resolved before this budget session, because I'm not going to put more money
into this knowing that it's not been released yet. I think that would be for me,
totally irresponsible, totally irresponsible. In a year, especially when we're
fighting to find revenues to deal with some of the pukas that we heard till 10:30
last night about monies that perhaps we need to find. So anyway, would you take
that responsibility, sir?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. You know as Budget and Finance
Committee Chairman, it is my responsibility to resolve issues in regards to the
County's budget. I work closely with the Budget Director. I work closely with
the Finance Director. And if there's disputes in regards to contracts, then that is
another matter. So, Mr. Nishiki, like all of you, you know, we all are responsible
persons, but for me as Committee Chairman for the Budget and Finance
Committee, you know, it is my responsibility to resolve disputes if there are any
in regards to monies. So I'll be working with the, again, on a separate venue, to
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resolve this issue once and for all. And even if I have to get all parties involved,
meaning Corporation Counsel, Planning, Wailuku Main Street Association. You
know, again, we appropriate the money, Administration release the funds, again,
you know, we don't have the authority to release the funds, but we have the
authority to listen to the complaints and issues. So as Budget and Finance
Committee Chairman, you know, it is my responsibility. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. You know, Mr. Cannon has
been standing up here, he must feel like he's on time out or something.
...(Laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no. I just want to if we can get back to testimony
so I just have one other question to ask him. You know, and I'll try to keep it as
much as I can on the 2011 appropriation. You know, you mentioned something in
your testimony about conflicting interests and I'm trying to, you know, that the
Department has with, you know, I missed part of it, there was so much, you know.
So what is this thing about conflicting interests the Department has as it relates to
this appropriation?
MR. CANNON: In answer to that question and also Councilwoman Baisa's question
about why this year, I believe the reason is why this year is because this is the
year we're going to be approving the General Plan. And this is an attempt to
muzzle an independent group that is putting out community concerns regarding
the General Plan. This is a plan that's going to last us for 20 years, supposedly.
And that is the reason, I believe, that this Administration is trying to muzzle us.
They don't want to hear these concerns, they only want to hear, cherry pick the
concerns that they think they want to hear, listen to and hear about, not the
concerns of the community It's top down instead of bottom up, that's the
difference right there. That's the reason, this is happening last year and this year,
because those are the years that the General Plan is being considered. This is a
very, very important subject and we have a community voice that is trying to be
muzzled and is trying to respectfully ask for your assistance to take that muzzle
off of us -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. CANNON: --and keep it off of us, keep us independent.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's what you meant by this conflicting interests.
MR. CANNON: That's correct.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 25, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Alright, thank you. Thank you. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Mr. Cannon, and thank you very much. I know this
is extremely difficult for both the Main Street Association and the Council. I
think what we have here is, maybe not clear cut understanding of how each party
perceives the role of your organization. What is your, your...what do you think
about that? It's this perception of the role. I think the Planning Department sees
you one way and you see yourselves as another.
MR. CANNON: Yeah, well, that issue was brought up when the Director met with our
Board. And Judge Artemio Baxa tried to explain to the Director that he cannot
dictate to our group what our mission is or what we're supposed to be doing.
We've been doing it for 25 years now, we know what our mission is. We've been
very good at it. Other Administrations have treated us fairly with regard to that
mission. And he wants to pigeonhole us into a small, little segment so we won't
be talking about the General Plan. He wants to keep us only talking about the
commercial cores of our small towns. We go beyond that even in our small
towns. We talk about anything that affects our small towns. And the General
Plan definitely does affect small towns. Whether they will exist or not, from this
point forward it will be very strongly affected by the General Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do you think that they see you more as an extension of
what they are doing rather than your perception, which I think I see very clearly,
that you're advocates. You're advocates for small towns. You're advocates for
the people on the street. And so this creates this tension because they have ideas
about planning and, you know, their own ideas about where things are going, and
your organization looks at it, talks to your constituents and comes up with another
perspective. So there's always this tension. And that's what I think I'm seeing.
MR. CANNON: The tension is because we're an independent voice and the present
Director was not educated in the design arts. He is not educated as an urban
planner. He was not educated as an architect. He was educated as a public
administrator, and that's part of the problem. He wants to administrate and
control every aspect of community input. I saw it on GPAC, I'm seeing it here
with regard to Main Street. And any independent voice will be muzzled,
squelched as much as possible. That's what I'm seeing.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I made a suggestion yesterday. I don't know if you heard
it or not, that because of this tension that maybe your agency shouldn't be in the
Planning Department where you're considered a contractor and, you know,
they're going to tell you this is what we want you to do. But maybe an
organization like yours which is more an advocacy organization should probably
be housed somewhere else where you can be independent and do your thing, and
work with the small towns and be advocates for them and then present your ideas
and recommendations to the Planning Department independently. What do you
think about that?
MR. CANNON: If we could find the right place to house it, perhaps, but it's not the
Department as a whole that we have these issues with. It's just two people at the
top. There are people, there are many people down below that are very supportive
of our organization. And especially the, you know, people like the Small Town
Planner. She has learned tremendous amounts from us, has written accolades
about us, which I could show you if you like. And it's not, it's not the whole
Department. And the previous administrator, the previous Director of the
Planning Department, as you recall, said that if wasn't for Main Street and the
help of our volunteer professionals and our volunteer citizens, that he would have
to hire a planner for each small town, each major small town. And that's why
we're saving the County money and there's many in the Planning Department that
understand that and appreciate that. It's only the top two that don't, and those
people are not educated in the design arts. They're only educated in
administrating.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, it appears to me that we have a Mexican standoff
that we're going to delegate to our illustrious Chair to negotiate. But I really
appreciate your being here today and your input. Thank you.
MR. CANNON: You're welcome. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. You know, it's very upsetting
when things like this happen, very upsetting. Thank you, Mr. Cannon.
MR. CANNON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Jocelyn Perreira.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: I didn't have a question but I wanted to
add to the conversation since you're sort of ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: I just wanted to make real clear that, you
know, we do have separate powers as the Legislative branch of government
versus the Executive branch of government. And I wanted to reiterate for us as
the legislative side, we have the ability to legislate appropriations for County
purposes, subject to the limitations provided by this Charter, one. Also to conduct
investigations of a) the operation of any department or function of the County and
b) any subject upon which the Council may legislate. So it is within our prevue to
take this under investigation as we see fit. Okay, on the flip side of this, I want to
also make sure we understand what is the other side of the powers and duties.
And for the administrative the powers and duties and functions is to exercise
supervision directly or through managing director over the department's
enumerated in Article 8 of this Charter and other agencies as provided by law. So
that's well within her right to be overseeing her departments. Other is to control,
manage and execute the annual operating budget of the capital program. Conduct
a systematic and continual review of the finances, organizations and methods of
each department of the County to assist each department in achieving the most
effective expenditure of public funds and determine that such expenditures are in
accordance with the budget laws and controls in force. So I want to make sure
that we understand our role and the confusion for me, in this last two days, is that
if we clearly look at our responsibilities we need to separate them here. Okay.
Some of the things that have been putting on the floor as of yesterday's budget
with the Planning Department, I think, is, needs to be pulled back to what our
rules in our Charter says. And if we don't do this, then we're no better off in what
we're what trying to do. So let's take it, and that's why I think your
recommendation is to take the item if it needs to be investigated, that we should
do so in the proper manner But to have this continuous discussion going on and
making a decision that are in part, I think the Executive's responsibility, is not our
role here. So I want to say before we continue that I will support your
recommendation to take this item, and if this body wants to do an investigation, it
has the ability to do so. And then let's take the proper steps to do that. But not, I
think in what you're„ you're I think, you're trying to lay out for us. Not in our
budget discussions. So I want to just leave it at that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Perreira.
MS. PERREIRA: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, Council Members. My name is
Jocelyn Perreira. I'm the Executive Director of the Wailuku Main Street
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Association/Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. I want to make a correction.
You folks have been referring to the organization as just Wailuku Main Street. It
is and should be listed as Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. I was told by the
Chair, that we would have a chance to rebut the comments and we did, we stayed
up quite late, and it is my intention to present you with factual information and let
you know that have more of that. Our former Chair, John Min, did a email to me,
early this morning, 12:04 in the morning, and he wants you to note that the
comments that Ms. Aoki made about she was negotiating a contract for five
months back and forth, back and forth with former Chair Min is, "is incorrect".
Okay. That she and he had communicated on some matters but they did... at no
time was there attempt to negotiate the terms of the grant agreement because as
you know, that would be subject to Board discussion and review as they had
requested. Our Board...I placed a lot of documents for you because it is
important. I know you're looking at this year's budget but you're also looking at
the budget this year for what you're going to give to the Planning Department,
okay. And that also has to be looked at, not, not only what we're going to get but
what they're going to get and whether or not, in fact, they deserve to get what
they are requesting, same as us. We are concerned for the censorship issues,
prejudicial conduct, and just by the nature of comments made, the potential for
slander is very real here because when you standing and you listening to
somebody else talking they can say anything they want and public does not have a
chance to come back and illustrate that is not correct. I gave you a copy of an old
contract just so you can compare because it relating for this current year and you
had a contract that they showed you yesterday. But what they didn't show you
and what you didn't have included, which you have before you today, is a matrix
that tells you why the proposed changes are objectionable. And, and it gives you
detailed information. We didn't have our attorney here but I can tell you that
former contracts go from 2002, we've had attorneys with our Board, notable
attorneys like Glenn Kosaka and Madelyn D'Enbeau, Corp. Counsel, sits on our
Board and has been involved. And Judge Artemio Baxa reviewed the contract,
not once, but twice and he could not recommend the Board to sign the contract.
This is not a standard contract. The newly revised one only has minor revisions.
All the substantive areas of concerns are still there. We are looking for a fee for
service contract...
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. PERREIRA: I'm sorry, I really need to...thank you. We are looking for a fee for
service contract, that's what we presented to you all at the last, for the last 24
years, is a fee for service, not a Planning Department consultant contract.
Corporation Counsel we note, has noted that they were not the sole author of the
contract, so many parts of the contract was written by the two parties in question.
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The distribution of the red line contract that you were looking at, the scratch out
stuff, that was from the Board of Directors who went over it on three special
meetings to intensely discuss it. The contract comments attributed to a Makawao
Town project is a convenient excuse to cover some of the treachery that has taken
place that hasn't been fully discussed or explored. This is not the time to do it but
we will go into that. It's entirely defendable. Although it is difficult because you
are used this kind of treatment...
MR. KANESHINA: Four minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How long is your testimony?
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you. I appreciate you letting...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Couple more minutes?
MS. PERREIRA: Yeah, thank you. Okay. It is...when a discussion took place about the
13,000, we were talking about a grant that was held up for $13,000 discussion of a
$243,000 grant. We were told to sign this to get a contract. And the Board of
Directors said no and that was relayed. Okay. And I have, we have the evidence
to show. It was not something that we were stuck because we couldn't come to
terms, we know what our scope of work is, it's always been the same. It's been
consistently the same that it has been to all of you for many, many years. The
only item that was changed was when Baldwin Beach Park was supposed to be a
$13,000 grant which the people of Paia themselves, it's not us by ourselves that
make the request. It's the people, the people had done a survey, survey work, on
a survey and they wanted to find out what was the important needs for Baldwin
Beach Park. And that was the hold up because they didn't want to do it because I
guess they didn't have funds. Now, really important is to look at a sequence of
events. On the 29 th of September, the Planning Department came here to ask you
guys for $300,000 plus and at that time and it's in your minutes, it is stated that
they going take the, they will be taking the money from MRA or Main Street or
whatever. All of a sudden they found the money. So you know, you need to look
at this. We were told all kinds of things, there's a cash flow problem with the
County, serious micromanagement. If you look at the contract itself and I guess
we have to be the spokesperson for all other non-profits. You know, I know, we
know the money is tight, we fully, and we willing to take our share of the hits like
anybody else, okay. But you guys, just because we're non-profits, doesn't mean
that we're not working hard to serve the people. We prevent a lot of serious
things from happening and we cannot be in a position where we have people in
places of authority putting the squeeze on us or trying to write contracts that we
are going to default on if it's something that we cannot, you know, honor and
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have the integrity to carry out. And that's what we want to do. We have earned
the right, over 25 years of good, solid, solid projects, solid programs with clean
audits. So anything anybody wants to put forward, you know, that's their
interpretation of it. That should not be taken as the truth. The facts are the facts.
And we humbly request you're assistance to help us get the Fiscal Year '11
funding . We do need more than 182 because 182 is going to hurt us very deeply.
I want to clarify that a contract extension is, is only like taking a little bit of our
money. We performed the services, there was no letter from the County saying, I
mean, there's three quarters of a year of work that has been done. So it's not like
extending it to us or extending a contract. That is money owed to us for services
performed with not one word of do not, cease or desist or whatever. We did the
work.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jocelyn, can you conclude?
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you. Sure. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You mentioned Planning Department coming to the
Council requesting $300,000 of which we approved, you said?
MS. PERREIRA: I don't, I have a, I have a copy of minutes -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MS. PERREIRA: --of a meeting that took place with Budget and Finance when the
Deputy Director came and told you folks she needed more money for positions.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, okay, okay, I remember.
MS. PERREIRA: And in the minutes it states, where she was going to get some money
from and that was back in September. So all of a sudden, few days later, we're
called to go to Mr. Hunt's office to have this change of scope of what our
program is and everything else to make it like kind of impossible to do what we
already had presented, and the position of the Board of Directors is we're not
going veer from the integrity of what we presented here to you as the Council.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Well, let me ask you this. Then, you're thinking
and I don't know if we approved it or not, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This money but I was just curious because you had
mentioned that the money for Main Street was a line item or a grant so obviously
they couldn't take it. I was just curious, whether in her looking at what Mr. Hunt
said he was going to do, somehow they were trying to justify some of the money
that was going to these people and use it in that $300,000 request. Do you have
any recollection or -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well I, I...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- do any of you have?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, I just was...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I'd like to ask Staff because she's kind of shaking
her head.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki. To answer your question, Staff just gave me some
information about the $300,000 that was that disencumbered contract.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Meaning?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Meaning, it was taken.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: From them?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: There's no...no contract. I don't know from who.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay so...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But again, but again...yeah...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So explain it so that I can understand it in English.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What does disencumbered contract mean? Please.
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MS. REVELS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. A disencumbered contract is a contract from a
prior fiscal year that was encumbered for, it could be for their agency but it could
be for any public CIP contract, any contract that would, was encumbered where
they did not spend all of the funds that were encumbered. So say they complete
their project and they spent 90,000 but they had a 100,000 encumbered, and they
can be quite old. It can go back several fiscal years.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. REVELS: Then that $10,000, in my example, that was not encumbered becomes
available in the General Fund for re-appropriation to something else.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So there is a way, Mr. Chairman, despite that
you said that it was a grant and therefore nobody can take it, this is the venue in
which something like this can happen-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes or no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So was she specific in saying where these, these
monies were coming for, from what contract? And what were those contracts?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, I don't have the file with me, I just emailed someone
downstairs to bring it up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I'm done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, I think this is, this is important at this
stage. I agree what's going on right here and I think we're almost ... (sigh)... we
have an inquest going on right now, if I'm not mistaken, Mr. Chair. I think we're
going off, off of the...I agree we need to get this resolved, Jocelyn, and you know
I'll fight to get it resolved.
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MS. PERREIRA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm not sure if this is, and in fact, I'm sure this is
not the place and you've said it many times and we keep running back to this
same point. And Mr. Kaho'ohalahala has made a big point of trying to let, tell us
what we can and cannot do, you what I mean. Thank you very much for the
clarification, I appreciate that, seriously, Sol, I do appreciate it. And so the public
understands, okay. So we're, we need to solve this problem but I don't think this
is the place to solve it. Thank you for bringing it and we need to work on it.
MS. PERREIRA: Okay. Mr. Victorino, the problem is the organization, unlike the
County that has funds or can...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I...
MS. PERREIRA: You know we have limited resources. We're concerned about -CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm going to stop...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I, I...
MS. PERREIRA: --the time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Perreira, please.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I want to get this resolved, Mr. Chair. They
need their money. And I'm going to push real hard with the Administration to get
this resolved ASAP. I will do it, and with your, with your assistance we will get
this done. But I don't think we're going solve it here. And if, correct me if I'm
wrong, can we solve it here, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And the Administration and the Planning
Department right now are not here to, to put their, their manao into this picture,
and I think that's another thing I want to be fair. Okay. No offense to anybody in
this room. I always like to be fair to both sides because there's always two sides
to a story.
MS. PERREIRA: Take your time. Take your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (inaudible) ...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So Mr. Chair, I will leave your directions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll stop right here. I want to get this resolved but I
think we cannot do it here and I think we're going and going. If we get all the
facts and then at your disposal we can work on it, I would be happy to contribute
whatever I can to solve it for you, Jocelyn, and the Tri-Isle.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you so much -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. PERREIRA: --on behalf of the small towns.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair, may I respectfully ask for a very short break?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before we take the break, I'm going to call on Mr. Pablo.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair. And good morning, members. I'm very disturbed by
the way the discussions are going this morning. Several points were made out
this morning. What is the role of the, your body and what is the role of the, I
mean of the Administration? They are and I think the numbers came out
yesterday, there are over 100 grants every year. The line item grants increase
every year. The amounts increase every year. We do have processes in place
that...to manage the taxpayers' money. Because an organization and I'm not
talking about this organization, I'm not familiar with, with the issues they have
with the Planning Department, but as a Budget Director, I have to look at the
process, how do we protect the taxpayers' money. Because an item is in the
budget, it doesn't mean it's automatically disbursed on July 1 St . There are
processes to go through. There's an application process with the departments.
And applicants have to comply with those procedures. It applies to everyone.
Because an organization is in the budget doesn't necessarily mean they do not
have to apply nor meet all the provisions of that department. The department
have to determine what services are needed, is the organization providing those
services, how much are those services worth. The organization and the
department has to work with Corporation Counsel to make sure that any liability
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issues can be, can be addressed in the grant agreement. It's a very lengthy
process, sometimes it is on the part of the applicant that not all the information is,
is processed in time. Consider we do have 100, over 100 grants, it does take time
to process each of this and at the same time, protect the taxpayers' money. I'm
glad that a Council Member had brought out the differences between what should
be a budget item versus what should be a management item We have to manage
those funds that you appropriate to us and make sure it's being used for the
purpose that it was, it was determined to be. Again, we do have processes in
place, I don't believe the terms of an agreement should be here for discussion. As
the Chair said, there is a venue for that. If you want to inspect it, it should be in a
different venue. Or would you like 101 grantees before you, revealing their grant
agreements and what they do not agree with. I think it's a very disturbing
discussion today and again, it's not against this organization, it's just that, from an
administrative point of view, I'm trying to make sure we have a process in place
and it doesn't come here before you, whether our processes are right or not. You
give us a budget and we'll go ahead and manage that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So at this time, Members, Chair is going to take a
short recess, five minutes. And Ms. Perreira is still standing. We'll bring back
Ms. Perreira soon as we take our short recess. We'll reconvene at 11:00.
. . .(gavel). . .
RECESS: 10:47 a.m.
RECONVENE: 11:01 a.m.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened, Members. I know we have a meeting tonight in Hana and that there
are some of you that will be driving today, so Chair is looking at probably, not
probably, will be concluding at noon so that gives you time, the ones that
traveling by car, to get to Hana for our 6:30 meeting at the Helene Hall. So,
Members, when we left off, member, Ms. Perreira was still on the testimony area.
Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Thank you for reminding us
we do have what will probably be a long evening in Hana. We've had very long
evenings the last two nights so I'll just be straight to the point because I know I
want to, you know, conclude. Ms. Perreira, just, you know, yesterday I asked the
Department about, well, they had mentioned to us that they are looking at hiring
additional personnel or coming to this Council in the future, in the near future.
And your role with the Tri-Isle, or the Tri-Isle Main Street's role with the
Planning Department of this County, in terms of effectiveness, cost effectiveness,
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can you comment, and as it relates to now, again the $182,000 appropriation, just
trying to...
MS. PERREIRA: I would just like to preface it with the former Planning Director, John
Min, who is on record with the Cost of Government Commission and he did say
the importance of the Main Street organization augmenting the services of the
Planning Department, it is a matter of record. If you want to increase your
public's, government sector workforce, then you have to look at that. We, on the
private sector, as I explained to you, you get a good bang for the buck because
you are getting professionals and assistance at three to five times less what the
government would have to go out and pay for that kind of normal services. If you
look at the cost effectiveness of the program, it is extremely cost effective and a
very good investment, very good bang for the County's buck.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Alright. So you've always been a willing and able
partner with the County to provide ... (inaudible) ...
MS. PERREIRA: Yeah. And we've enjoyed it, we've enjoyed working with the County
and we hope to continue doing so. We together, we have done some wonderful,
wonderful things, wonderful projects and benefits for our community And we
are very excited about continuing our work with the community plans after the
General Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Alright. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for Ms. Perreira? Seeing none,
thank you, Jocelyn.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla and Council Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is August Percha.
MR. PERCHA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm August Percha. I'm Vice-Chairman of the
Tri-Isle Main Street organization. I'll be brief. It's getting late. I'm liking what
I'm hearing today and I really appreciate each and every one of you for your
leadership, especially those of you discussing the venues. As you're aware, I
mean, if I can digress, we got a little shortchanged on the judicial branch. I wish I
could speak like Tom ... (chuckling) ... but I can't. And another thing I see around
here, is, you know, sometimes you've got to laugh or else you're just going to cry,
when you find out a few things. And I see the Chair smiling and you see that
smile all the time.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: There you go.
MR. PERCHA: And I guess the last thing I'll leave you with is that, you know, I have
clients, they're small guys, they're not the big boys. And they and their small
businesses and me included and you all, you work hard, each and every day and
we've made this the best island in the world. But just don't be fooled into
thinking you got the best Planning Department in the world. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thanks again, August, for coming by and providing your testimony.
Members, we do have two more people that want to provide public testimony and
I got to apologize, I lost one of the sheets ...(laughter)... the testimony sheet.
You took it back? Oh, okay. The last testifier this morning is Pualani Basbas.
MS. BASBAS: Aloha everyone. Glad to be here. Chair Pontanilla and Council
Members, Committee Members, I'm really glad for the opportunity to be able to
speak. I'm here basically, being here in behalf of the Mental Health America,
Maui County. I'm on the Board of Directors for the Mental Health America
Hawaii and I'm the Chair for our Operating Board here on Maui. And, but, you
know, after...I just want to say something because as an individual and as a
member of a small town and you know that I live in Waihee, so I'm kind of
concerned about the things that I've heard this morning. And I just want to just
say that I do appreciate the Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. They have been
a real asset to our community and so to hear some of the things that are going on
today, is disturbing. I just wanted to say I appreciate them and I know that you
folks are looking at the best interests of our communities as a whole and I really
thank you for that. And so I hope that there is going to be a resolution to what
was discussed this morning. However, as I said, I'm the Chair for our Operating
Board here for the Mental Health America Maui County. And right now,
currently, we're the only outer island branch that is current and active. And one
of the reasons is, is because we had the continued support from our Maui County
Council and our Mayor. And I know that you folks have a very tough decision to
make in regards to our budget. Mental Health America, Maui County advocates
for awareness about mental illness. It is real and in doing some research,
especially for post traumatic stress disorder or as you know, as PTSD, and part of
my background is also workers' comp and I found with PTSD, and realized it and
thanks to our Senator Spark's...Matsunaga's study in this area, especially for our
boys that have gone to war. And that's a natural injury but it's an injury that you
do not see like a physical injury. Someone who has lost their, their arm because
of a car accident or have become paraplegic because of a fall, these are things that
you see physically. And in mental health you don't see that and but it's real. It's
real and it's real for the person that's living it as well as the families that live with
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this person. And so we, so we advocate for awareness on mental health. We also
educate our community about how does someone cope with stress. Last, this
month as a matter of fact, we had, we have our brown bags seminars and we had
Dr. Sword this month on stress and the heart. And he, actually taught us one of
the things we could do to relieve stress and that's actually...so I'd like all of you
to take a deep breath. Let it out very slowly. Okay. And this is what we can do.
It's very simple and this is the kind of things that we educate our community
about. And what happens is if you just keep your body aligned, your head and
your body together -MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. BASBAS: --with your mind and your heart, then, is in line and your heart starts to
beat a little slower and your stress level comes down. So these are the things
we're looking forward to Dr. Galler-rimm who's going to be doing the autism
presentation for our brown bag. But these are the things that we do for our
community And so, just wanted to share that today with you. And I hope that
you consider us and continue to support us. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Pualani. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Maybe I'll use your demonstration, take a deep breath, let it out slowly so that we
all come back to normal.
... (Laughter)...
MS. BASBAS: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, again. Members, this morning was a really good
meeting. ... (laughter)... But, you know, as the Chair had pointed out earlier, you
know, the Tri-Isle Main Street Association issue is not dead. Chair will look at
his calendar and provide a date for all of the members when we're going to take
up this matter. And I want to complete that matter prior to completing the 2011
Budget. So I'll be working with Corporation Counsel, the Department and the
Association in regards to the issues. So, Members, with that, the meeting here in
Wailuku this morning is completed. And for those that...those of you driving,
you know, drive carefully and there are Members as well as Staff that are flying
this evening to Hana. So, Members that are driving, we'll see you in Hana. This
meeting is now adjourned. . . .(gavel). . .

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
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